
                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING  APRIL 1, 2015   Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

WEDNESDAY APRIL 1, 2015 7:00 PM 
61750 CHOLLITA ROAD, JOSHUA TREE, CALIFORNIA 92252 

AGENDA 
 

 

 1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

 2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM 
 

 4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

 5. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
This public comment portion of this agenda provides an opportunity for the public to address the Board of 
Directors on items not listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public at large and are within the subject 
matter jurisdiction of this Board.  The Board of Directors is prohibited by law from taking action on matters 
discussed that are not on the agenda, and no adverse conclusions should be drawn if the Board does not 
respond to public comments at this time.  Comments that concern individual customer accounts are welcome, 
however we encourage doing so only after other administrative avenues for redress have been fully exhausted.  
In all cases, your concerns will be referred to the General Manager for review and a timely response.  
 
Comments are to be limited to three minutes per speaker and shall not exceed a total of 20 minutes.  All 
comments are to be directed to the Board of Directors and shall not consist of any personal attacks.  Members 
of the public are expected to maintain a professional, courteous decorum during their comments.  Public input 
may be offered on an agenda item when the item comes up for discussion and/or action.  Members of the 
public who wish to speak shall proceed to the podium when called by the President of the Board.  Please state 
your name and community of residence for the record. 
 

 
 
 
Pgs. 1-4 
 
Pgs. 5-12 

6. CONSENT CALENDAR: Items on the Consent Calendar are considered routine in nature and will 
be adopted in total by one action of the Board of Directors unless any Board Member or any 
individual or organization interested in one or more consent calendar items wishes to be heard. 

A. Approve Draft Minutes of the March 18, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Directors 

B. Approve Check Audit Report for February 2015 
 

  

PO Box 675 • 61750 Chollita Road • Joshua Tree CA  92252 
Phone (760) 366-8438 • Fax (760) 366-9528 • www.jbwd.com 

An Equal Opportunity Provider 

http://www.jbwd.com/


                   AGENDA FOR REGULAR BOARD MEETING  APRIL 1, 2015   Page 2 of 2 
 

 
Pg. 13 

7. CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION FOR WATER EDUCATION EFFORTS PRESENTED BY 
SENATOR JEAN FULLER’S FIELD REPRESENTATIVE JIM SCHOOLER 
Recommend that the Board accept and file certificate. 
 

 
Pg. 14 

8. OVERVIEW OF DISTRICT WASTEWATER TREATMENT STRATEGY 
Recommend that the Board accept for information only. 
 

 
Pgs. 15-16 

9. A REVIEW OF INFORMATION PROVIDED TO THE BOARD CONCERNING THE KAY 
KEENE REQUEST FOR A VARIANCE 
Recommend that the Board ratify and confirm that the information provided by Staff is correct and 
accept that the two previous decisions to not issue a variance are appropriate. 
 

 
Pgs. 17-31 

10. QUARTERLY FINANCE REPORT  
Recommend that the Board receive and file the report. 
 

 11. STANDING: 
A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE: Vice President  Luckman and Director Unger:   

Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant to report. 
B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: President Fuller and Director Johnson 
C. WATER RESOURCES & OPERATIONS COMMITTEE: Vice President Luckman and 

Director Johnson. 
 

 12. PUBLIC COMMENT 
At this time, any member of the public may address the Board on matters within the Board’s 
jurisdiction that are not listed on the agenda. Please use the podium microphone.  The Board may 
not discuss at length or take action on items not on the agenda. 
 

 13. DISTRICT GENERAL COUNSEL REPORT  
 

 14. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
 

 15. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 
Technical Advisory Committee April 02, 2015 - 10:00 AM 
 

 16. INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 
 

 17. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
 

 18. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 

 19. ADJOURNMENT 

 
INFORMATION 
 
The public is invited to comment on any item on the agenda during discussion of that item. 
Any person with a disability who requires accommodation in order to participate in this meeting should telephone Joshua Basin Water 
District at (760) 366-8438, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting in order to make a request for a disability-related modification or 
accommodation. 
 
Materials related to an item on this Agenda submitted to the Board of Directors after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public 
inspection in the District’s office located at 61750 Chollita Road, Joshua Tree, California 92252 during normal business hours. 
 
This meeting is scheduled to be broadcast on Time Warner Cable Channel 10 on April 8 at 7:00 pm and April 15 at 7:00 pm.   
DVD recordings of Joshua Basin Water District Board meetings are available at the District office and at the Joshua Tree Library 



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MARCH 18, 2015   Page 1 of 4 
 

 

JOSHUA BASIN WATER DISTRICT 
Minutes of the 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 

March 18, 2015 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER:     7:00 PM 

 
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

  

3. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM: Victoria Fuller 
Bob Johnson 
Mickey Luckman 
Mike Reynolds 
Rebecca Unger 
 

Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 
Present 

STAFF PRESENT: Curt Sauer, General Manager 
Susan Greer, Assistant General Manager/Controller 
Keith Faul, GIS Coordinator 
 

CONSULTANTS PRESENT: Gil Granito, District Counsel, Redwine & Sherrill 
Kathleen Radnich, Public Outreach Consultant 
 

GUESTS 14 
 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
MSC Luckman/Johnson 5/0 to approve the agenda for the March 4, 2015 meeting.  
  Fuller  Aye  
  Johnson Aye 
  Luckman Aye  
  Reynolds Aye  
  Unger   Aye  
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
None 
 
6.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
MSC Luckman/Reynolds, 5/0 to approve Draft Minutes of the February 18, 2015 Regular Meeting of the Board of 
 Directors  
 Fuller  Aye  
 Johnson Aye 
 Luckman Aye  
 Reynolds Aye 
 Unger   Aye 

  



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MARCH 18, 2015   Page 2 of 4 
 

 

7. REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF WILL SERVE LETTER – ALTAMIRA PROJECT 

Introduction from District Counsel, Gil Granito regarding Board’s duties and responsibilities.  GM Sauer gave Staff 
Report regarding the project.  John Criste of Terra Nova Planning gave a presentation on the Altamira Project.   
 
Public comments from David Ficke, Karen Tracy and Tom Floen of Joshua Tree with concern about having enough water 
for the project. 
MSC Luckman/Unger, 5/0 agreed that the Altamira Project Will Serve Letter be tabled until more information is received 
to proceed. 
 

 Fuller  Aye  
 Johnson Aye 
 Luckman Aye  
 Reynolds Aye 

 Unger   Aye 
 
8. AN OVERVIEW OF JBWD FEES AND RATES 
General Manager Sauer gave presentation and information only. 
  
9. UPDATE ON CHROMIUM 6 PROJECT 
GM Sauer gave presentation and information only. 
 
10. STANDING: 

A. PUBLIC INFORMATION COMMITTEE:  Kathleen Radnich gave report. 
B. FINANCE COMMITTEE: No report 

 
11. PUBLIC COMMENT 
David Fiske questioned how the District is doing with Governor Brown requests for 20% reduction of water usage. 
GM Sauer indicated that the District is at 3%. 
 
12. DISTRICT COUNSEL REPORT 
General Counsel Granito gave report: 
AB1 - A bill prohibiting fines for not watering lawns, allowing lawns to turn brown, or having a brown lawn during a 
declared drought. 
AB149 – Changes existing law from requiring an updated Urban Water Management Plan by December 31 in years 
ending in five and zero, and moves that to requiring the update by December 31 in years ending in six and one, beginning 
January 2017. 
SB7 – Requires the installation of water sub-meters in multiunit residential buildings. 
 
13. GENERAL MANAGER REPORT 
General Manager Sauer gave report.  Some corrections to statement he made at last meeting: Regarding 457 statement 
made at last meeting - Employees have the opportunity to invest in a 457, Deferred Compensation plan.  The district will 
match 10 percent of their contributions, up to $450.  What I said was if you contribute $4,500, the District would match 
up to $450. And I also said that if the employee contributed $450 the District would match that. That statement is 
incorrect. The District would only contribute $45. 

 
We also discussed the amount of water Cascade Solar used for the construction of the site. Technically, Cascade Solar 
used no water because the account name was in Rosenden Electric.  Some people have maintained they used 54 AF. Our 
records indicate they used 38.06AF. This is for two separate accounts using two separate meters. 
We stated that they were close to their actual estimated need.  They were actually 28 percent over their estimated need.  



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MARCH 18, 2015   Page 3 of 4 
 

 

End of corrections. 
 
Revenues – was another item mentioned during last Board meeting.   For Metered Water Sales, the variable water usage 
component shows revenues of $66,000 MORE than last year, representing a 6.42% increase over last year.  That falls 
right in line with the 6% rate increase.  For the water revenues that we budgeted, revenues are more than $60,000 ahead of 
last year as of February.  
 
Well 15 prep is done and waiting to receive building in late March. 
 
Susan working on CDPH grant filing. 
 
Safety Training – 
Course: Underground Utility Line Locator 
Description:  This workshop provides the information needed to become a Qualified Utility Locator per Cal-OSHA 1541, 

as well as the training and skills required by the national standards of Common Ground Alliance and National Utility 
Locator Contractor Association best practices for utility locators.  

  
Training-  
On Thursday March 17, 2015 our District will be hosting a training class provided free by Mueller Co.  Topics covered 
include: Fire hydrant installation tips, component details, hydrant restraint, flow characteristics, security, repair and 
maintenance. 
 
We invited the San Bernardino County Fire Department, San Bernardino County Road Department and Big Horn Desert 
View Water Agency.  The class size is limited and therefore we could not invite HDWD or 29 palms water at this time.  
All attendees will receive continuing education units (CEU’S) which can go towards required State of California water 
certifications.   This class will be beneficial not only to our staff but will be helpful in educating outside agencies on the 
proper use of our fire hydrants. 
 
We have nominated Steve Corbin for California Rural Water Association for Operator of the Year. 
Steve has been assigned many difficult fabrication projects such as the G-1 booster site retrofit, Hacienda pressure 
reducing project, Well 10 downhole treatment system, Water Wise Demonstration Station, and the reservoir skimmer 
system.  Over the years I have been repeatedly impressed by his work, and find him an invaluable member of my team.   
His skills do not stop at his fabrication work.  He projects a warm, inviting, and can do spirit to the job.  I have witnessed 
his ability to resolve conflict and handle difficult situations in a remarkable manner.  Furthermore, I have watched as he 
has taken other operators under his wing to teach the next generation of water professionals.  Steve has served as an active 
member of the district’s safety committee for seven years. 
 
MWA Recharge AF has changed from 568 to 684. This will allow us to reach our two year goal of 1000 AF. We will 
work with MWA to take water either in late September or early October so that we are done by December 15. 
 
14. FUTURE DIRECTOR MEETINGS AND TRAINING OPPORTUNITIES 
Technical Advisory Committee on April 2, 2015 
 
15. INDIVIDUAL DIRECTOR REPORTS ON MEETINGS ATTENDED 

Vice President Luckman reported on the Morongo Basin Pipeline Commission meeting. 
Director Unger reported on the Mojave Water Agency Board meeting 
 

16. DIRECTORS COMMENTS/REPORTS 
Director Johnson talked about the Finance Committee meeting coming up and that there will be a FEMA Training on 
April 8. 



 

REGULAR BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MARCH 18, 2015   Page 4 of 4 
 

 

Director Unger talked about concerns with Altamira Project Will Serve letter. 
President Fuller congratulated Vice President Luckman on being elected for the Board of the Morongo Basin Pipeline 
Commission. 
 
17.     FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
None 
 
18.  ADJOURNMENT 
MSC Luckman/Reynolds 5/0 to adjourn the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of March 18, 2015 at 9:22 pm 
.  Fuller  Aye  
  Johnson Aye 
  Luckman Aye  
  Reynolds Aye  
  Unger   Aye 
 
 Respectfully submitted:  

 
 
_________________________________ 
Curt Sauer, General Manager and Board Secretary 

 


























































